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Keystone (Keystone Park Colony)

Keystone Park Colony incorporated much of today’s communities of Citrus Park, Cosme,
Keystone, and Lake Fern. One of the earliest known settlers was Martin D. Patterson
who migrated to the Keystone area, approximately 10 miles east of Tarpon Springs, in
1866. It was here that Mr. Patterson met and married Katherine E. Stone, a widowed
mother with one daughter, on June 6, 1866. Cutting cordwood and selling it in Tampa,
Mr. Patterson saved up enough money to purchase 80 acres of land at 50 cents an acre.
They settled in an area around present day Patterson Road. Together, the Pattersons had
six additional children, many of whom relocated to areas throughout northwest
Hillsborough County and northern Pinellas County. The family subsisted on cultivated
fruit and vegetables, raised farm animals, hunted game and fished. Additionally, they
grew cotton to make their clothes. Other early settlers in the greater Keystone area
included the Gant, Lynn, McCarty, Mobley, Moody, and Spivey families.'

In the 1880s, this vast, sparsely settled area began to take shape. Enough families with
children existed in the area for a school to be created in 1883. The following year
Keystone Park received a post office. As yellow fever rampaged through Florida
communities during the 1880s, Keystone’s post office became a mail disinfectant point
for letters sent to summer visitors in the Clearwater area. Not having an understanding
that mosquitoes were the cause of yellow fever, the mail was fumigated to protect people
from the yellow fever “cotagion” that could possibly be transported via the mail."

An 1885 description of Keystone reveals the community’s appeal and namesake.
Furthermore, it reveals that the migration of northerners to Hillsborough is not a recent
phenomena, but has been a foundation of the county’s growth since the 19" century:

Keystone Park is situated on the mail rout from Tampa to Tarpon Springs.
Fare to Tampa, $1.50; to Cedar Keys, $4. It derives its name from the fact
that many of the settlers are from the Keystone State. Railroad prospects
are very favorable, so that fast transportation is a matter of the near future.
Keystone Lake, the largest in this vicinity is 4 42 miles long by 2 mile in
width, and is in the shape of a boat. There is an M.E. Church here, and a
common school. Among the owners of noted orange groves are Rev.
Jason Grant, Messrs. R.T Youngblood, M.D. Patterson and C.A.
Nicholson. The settlers are whites, from Pennsylvania, New Jersey and
Michigan, are well-to-do and industrious. Mr. J.F. Pierce is postmaster.™

Shortly after the turn of the century, sawmill owners began building rail lines across
northwest Hillsborough to gain access to the region’s vast tracts of timber. The Gulf Pine
Company supposedly cut 65,000 feet of yellow pine lumber a day in Keystone mill. In
1910 the Tampa Gulf Coast Railway connected Lutz to Tarpon Springs. Other lines were
constructed, and by 1915 three trains a day roared through the Keystone area, making
stops at Cosme, Lake Fern, Gulf Pine, and Keystone. Trains continued to travel through
Keystone until the 1960s."



As sawmills cleared the land of trees, people began to relocate to the region. Keystone’s
population reached 137 in 1890, and 187 in 1900. Realizing the rural community’s
growth potential, the Tampa Bay Land Company filed the plat of Keystone Park Colony
on September 30, 1909, encompassing a major portion of Township 27 South, Range 17
East. In addition the company platted Keystone Park in August 1909, filing the plat in
the Hillsborough County Court House on January 17, 1910. Keystone Park was situated
on Tarpon Springs Road, west of the present community of Keystone. Michigan Trust
Company was also another large land holder in the region, selling plots to Michiganders
looking for warmer climes.”

The Tampa Bay Land Company had big dreams for Keystone Park Colony. They
subdivided the nearly 10,000 acres into 10, 20, and 40-acre farms, selling the land for $25
an acre. All one needed for a ten-acre farm was ten dollars down and the remainder
could be paid off in five dollar monthly installments. For a 20-acre farm one needed $20
down and an additional $10 a month, while a 40-acre farm required $40 down at $20 a
month. As a selling point, the company constructed a “bureau of information” for
residents and potential buyers. The two-story colony house was located on the north end
of Dakota Avenue. Additionally, the building housed a post office and a company office.
The company also created a demonstration farm on the south side of the intersection of
Tarpon and Tyler roads. They planted anything and everything that could possibly be
grown in the Florida soil, attempting to lure potential farmers to the colony."

Whether through the Tampa Bay Land Company’s efforts or because of the success of
the timber industry and railroads, Keystone Park population was 304 in 1910. In 1911
Keystone Park had two real estate agents, two turpentine distillers, orange growers, a
poultry breeder, and Keystone Commercial Company’s general store. By 1918, citrus
growers proliferated, but the turpentine distillers were not listed. Only one real estate
agent, who also served as postmaster, operated in Keystone Park. However, a painter and
a contractor had set up business sometime between 1911 and 1918. The prosperity
bubble soon burst with the post office shutting down on May 14, 1923. The two sawmills
burned to the ground in 1925. Finally, the Great Depression wiped out the Tampa Bay
Land Company and its colony. The state acquired most of the company’s property. The
colony house was torn down for its lumber and used to erect a house on Michigan
Avenue. In the 1930s Keystone and its neighboring communities chiefly consisted of
isolated citrus farms."™

Until the 1970s, much of the area remained rural, with a few families either moving in or
out of the community. Yet, as Tampa grew, people moved both to the north and west of
the city. Consequently, while still rural in many sections, gated communities and planned
subdivisions have sprouted throughout the entire northwest section of Hillsborough
County. As new schools are built and the Citrus Park Mall sprouts, development
pressures will continue in the greater Keystone area.
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